
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                          BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 March 2, 2023 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
OPEN SESSION: 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 16, 2023 

B. Approve the Warrant List for March 2, 2023 

C. Approve Resolution 2023-2301  Board Policy B-180 Harrassment Prevention 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through C. 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Board Policies O-140 Customer Support and M-10 Public Involvement and Outreach - written 

 

4. AMENDMENT OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

Board to review the Amendment of Employment Agreement for Mel Liebmann. 

 

4:45 PM 

 

4:35 PM 

6:00 PM 

5:15  PM 

 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:30 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


March 2, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: MARCH 16 AND APRIL 6, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before February 27, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on March 2, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley 
Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: February 23, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

5:45 PM 

5:50 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:00  PM 

5:30  PM 

2



March 2, 2023 Page 3 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

  _________________________________________________________________  

 

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 

Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

 

3



 

 
 

 

3/2/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: March 2, 2023 

Re: Approve Resolution 2023-2301 adopting revised Board Policy B-180 
(Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and Complaint 
Procedure) 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Attached for approval is Resolution 2023-2301 updating Board Policy B-180 (Harassment, 
Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and Complaint Procedure). Legal Counsel 
suggested changes are shown in highlight (strikeout format) and a final copy is also provided. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Board has requested to review and update Board Policies.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On February 16, 2023, the Board reviewed Policy B-180 (Harassment Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure) with staff and requested it come back to the Board for approval. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number_______2C______ 

GM Review   ______CP_____ 

 

10



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and Complaint 
Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent harassment and 
retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; and to set forth a 
procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as soon as possible—any 
conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, discrimination and retaliation 
by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials, are strictly prohibited and are 
subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and including termination. 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. A single act by a 
District employee may constitute a violation of  this Policy and provide sufficient grounds for 
the District to discipline the District employee.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will be 
subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

B-180-20 Definitions. 

B-180-20-1 Protected Classification. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation because of an individual's protected classification. "Protected Classification" 
includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex (including gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, transgender identity, pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation (including 
heterosexuality, homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, marital status, age 
(40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or information, military and veteran 
status, physical or mental disability, or any other basis protected by law. 

FINAL

11



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an 
individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an individual has a protected 
classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a 
protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making a request 
for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an accommodation for religious 
beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) opposing violations of this Policy; or (5) 
participating in an investigation under this Policy.  

B-180-20-3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation 
for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who has 
or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, or 
retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or members of the 
public for any of the reasons enumerated above.  

B-180-20-4. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered individual because 
of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as elected 
officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the public.  
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, slurs, or 
stereotypical comments, or verbal propositions made on the basis of a protected 
classification. This includes, but is not limited to, comments, stories, and jokes about 
appearance, dress, physical features, gender identification, and race. 

Physical acts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive touching, or any 
physical interference with normal work or movement. This includes, but is not limited to, 
pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or making explicit or implied job threats 
or promises in return for submission to physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, emails, 
pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual nature, 
where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where submission to or 
rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions, or where the conduct 
is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere with an individual's work performance or 
create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. 

12



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual differently and 
adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification; because the 
individual associates with a person who is or is perceived to be a member of a protected 
classification; or because the individual participates in a protected activity as defined in this 
Policy. 

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action against a 
covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) disciplinary 
action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported harassment or 
discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about someone who supports or 
assists the complainant or who participates in the investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an 
individual who reports harassment or discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of 
intimidation to prevent or deter an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment. Harassment includes conduct that another 
individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or unwanted. 
Harassment may include the following: 

B-180-30-1 Harassment includes conduct which would be unwelcome or unwanted to an 
individual of the recipient's same protected classification and which is taken because of the 
recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy if the 
conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient finds the 
conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned conduct (e.g., gifts, over-
attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-30-3 Conduct to which the recipient appears to have consented. The District does not 
recognize as a defense that the recipient appeared to have "consented" to the conduct at 
issue by failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid being 
perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to retaliation. 

B-180-30-4 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained. Simply because 
no one has complained about a joke, gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or 
substantially similar conduct does not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or 
appropriate. The fact that no one previously complained does not preclude anyone from 
complaining if the conduct is repeated. 

B-180-30-5 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party learns, even if 
they did not witness the conduct.. Visual, verbal or physical conduct between two people 
who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can constitute harassment of a 
third party witnesses such conduct or learns about the conduct later and finds the conduct 
to be offensive or inappropriate. Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not 
explicitly or specifically directed at a particular individual. 

13



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

B-180-30-6 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if the 
individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-intentioned 
conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected 
classification, and if the individual or an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification would find it inappropriate or offensive (e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing 
nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-40 Complaint Procedure. A covered individual who believes they have been 
subjected to harassment, discrimination or retaliation may make a complaint to any 
supervisor, manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain 
of command. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-40-3 Within 24 hours of submitting the complaint to the General Manager, the General 
Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-40-4 Authorize and supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate 
the complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the following 
individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of the investigation); 3) 
witnesses to the conduct at issue in the complaint; and 4) other persons who have relevant 
knowledge concerning the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation 
shall conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of the 
investigation, including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that may intimidate potential 
witnesses.  

The complainant and the accused have the right to be accompanied by an 
advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said persons shall be advised of this 
right prior to the commencement of such discussions. 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation to 
determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving consideration to all 
factual information, the totality of the circumstances, including the nature of the 
conduct, and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the appointing 
authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline or sanctions are 
imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be communicated to the 
complainant. 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

14



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation. 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether the recipient 
or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation of 
alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken against the 
appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including legal actions where 
appropriate. 

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, resulting 
from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation situation shall 
be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse conduct 
taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has reported 
harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation process described 
herein, is prohibited. This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in reporting 
harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation process, from 
retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality of 
complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initi al 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who may 
have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

15



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

B-180-70 Responsibilities.  

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect and 
consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy. 

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters. 

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by responding fully and 
truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while the District’s 
investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate supervisor or manager, District Counsel, 
or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and supervisor is 
responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy. 

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and retaliation from 
occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work environment and taking immediate 
and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., removing inappropriate pictures or correcting 
inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious manner.  

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints. 

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive conduct about 
which they complained has stopped and that there have been no reprisals or retaliation or 
threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their option to 
contact the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or California Civil Rights Department 
and file a complaint about such activity. 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy. 

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s). 

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a recommendation 
concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in accordance with these policies. 

16



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2023-2301 Date Approved: March 2, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Revised: February 16, 2023 

 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions. 

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the General Manager, 
regardless of whether an employee complained about such conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training. 

B-180-80 Right to File Report with Outside Administrative Agencies. An individual 
possesses the right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or retaliation to the U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the California Civil Rights 
Department (CRD). These administrative agencies provide a complaint process as well as 
certain legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation of the law 
occurred. The nearest EEOC and CRD offices are listed in the government section of the 
telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on District bulletin 
boards for EEOC and CRD office locations and telephone numbers. 

17



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent 
harassment and retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; 
and to set forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as 
soon as possible—any conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials , 
are strictly prohibited and are subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and 
including termination. 

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals. 

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Policy 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. Instead a A single 
act by a District employee can may constitute a violation of violate this Policy and provide 
sufficient grounds for the District to discipline  the District employee, or other appropriate 
sanctions.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Harassment against an applicant or employee by a supervisor, management, employee, 
elected official, co-worker, member of the public or contractor on the basis of race, religion, 
sex (including gender, gender identify, gender expression, transgender, pregnancy, and 
breastfeeding), national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, genetic characteristics 
or information, marital status, age, sexual orientation (including homosexuality, bisexuality, 
or heterosexuality), or any other protected classification will not be tolerated. 

DRAFT

18



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

Policy 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of service as an elected District official 
and governs elected officials' conduct with each other, District employees, volunteers, 
interns, members of the public, and contractors. 

Appropriate sanctions will be instituted for prohibited behavior as defined below. 

Any retaliation against a person for filing a good faith complaint or participating in the 
complaint resolution process in good faith is prohibited. Individuals found to be retaliating in 
violation of this Policy will be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. 

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

B-180-10 20 Definitions. 

B-180-1020-1 Protected Classification. This pPolicy prohibits harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation  because of an individual's protected classification. 
"Protected Classification" includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex 
(including gender, gender identifyidentity, gender expression, transgender identity, 
pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation (including heterosexuality, 
homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, marital 
status, pregnancy, age (40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or 
information, military and veteran status, and physical or mental disability, or any 
other basis protected by law. 

 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following 
reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person 
who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making 
a request for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an 
accommodation for religious beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) 
opposing violations of this Policy; or (5) participating in an investigation under this 
Policy.  

19



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

B-180-1020-2 3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the 
perception that an individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual 
associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, 
or retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or 
members of the public for any of the reasons enumerated above. because of: 1) an 
individual's protected classification; 2) the perception that an individual has a 
protected classification; or 3) the individual associates with a person who has or is 
perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-1020-34. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered 
individual because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. 
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior that is 
taken because of a person's protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as 
elected officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the 
public.  Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, or 
slurs, or stereotypical comments, or verbal  and propositionsing made  on the 
basis of a protected classification. This might includes, but is not limited to, 
inappropriate comments, stories, and jokes about on appearance, including 
dress,  or physical features,  or dress consistent with gender identification, or 
and race-oriented stories and jokes. 

Physical Aacts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive 
touching, or any physical interference with normal work or movement. This 
includes, but is not limited to, pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or 
making explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for submission to 
physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive, or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, 
emails, pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual 
nature, where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where 
submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment 
decisions, or where the conduct is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere 
with an individual's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working environment. 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual 
differently and adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected 
classification; because the individual associates with a person who is or is perceived 
to be a member of a protected classification; or because the individual participates in 
a protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

20



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action 
against a covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined 
in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) 
disciplinary action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported 
harassment or discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about 
someone who supports or assists the complainant or who participates in the 
investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an individual who reports harassment or 
discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent or deter 
an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-20 30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment.  Harassment includes conduct that 
another individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or 
unwanted. Harassment may include the following: 

To help clarify what constitutes harassment in violation of this Policy, use the following 
guidelines: 

B-180-2030-1 Harassment includes any conduction conduct which would be 
"unwelcome or unwanted" to an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification and which is taken because of the recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy 
if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient 
finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned 
conduct (e.g., gifts, over-attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-2030-32 It is noConduct to which the recipient appears to have consented 
can still constitute harassment. The District does not recognize as a defense that 
the recipient appeareds to have voluntarily "consented" to the conduct at issue by 
failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid 
being perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to 
retaliation. 

B-180-2030-43 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained can 
still constitute harassment. Simply because no one has complained about a joke, 
gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or substantially similar conduct does 
not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or appropriate. Harassment can 
evolve over time. The fact that no one is complaining nowpreviously complained does 
not preclude anyone from complaining if the conduct is repeated in the future. 

B-180-2030-54 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party 
learns, even if they did not witness the conduct., can be harassment. Even vVisual, 
verbal, or physical conduct between two elected officials who appear to welcome 
the conduct people who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can 
constitute harassment of a third applicant, officer, official, employee, intern, 
volunteer, or contractorparty witnesses suchho observes the conduct or learns 
about the conduct later and finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate. 

21



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not explicitly or specifically directed 
at an particular individual. 

B-180-2030-65 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if 
the individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-
intentioned conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or 
implicatesd a protected classification, and if an the individual or an individual of the 
recipient's same protected classification would find it inappropriate or offensive 
(e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-30 40 Complaint ProcessProcedure. A n employee, job applicant, volunteer, 
intern, elected official, or contractor covered individual who believes he/she is they have 
been subjected to the victim of harassment, discrimination or retaliation may file a formal or 
informal make a complaint without fear of reprisal or embarrassmentto any supervisor, 
manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain of 
command. 

B-180-40-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-40-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination, or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-30-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-30-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee 

B-180-30-3 Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint should notify the 
General Manager immediately. If the harassment complaint is made by or against 
the General Manager, the supervisor should notify District Counsel. 

B-180-3040-4 3 Within 24 hours of the submitting the complaint to the General 
Manager, the General Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain 
confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-3040-5 4 Upon receiving notification of a harassment complaint, the 
General Manager or District Counsel shall authorize Authorize and 
supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate the 
complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the 
following individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of 
the investigation) harasser; 3) witnesses to the conduct at issue in the 
complaint; and 34) other persons who have relevant knowledge concerning 

22



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation shall 
conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of 
the investigation. , including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that 
may intimidate potential witnesses.  

 

B-180-30-6 The person initiating the complaintcomplainant and the person 
accused of the alleged harassmentaccused has have the right to be 
accompanied by an advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said 
persons shall be advised of this right prior to the commencement of such 
discussions. 

 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation 
to determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving 
consideration to all factual information, the totality of the circumstances, 
including the nature of the conduct, and the context in which the alleged 
incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the 
appointing authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline 
or sanctions are imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be 
communicated to the complainant. 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether 
the recipient or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-40 50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation 
of an alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken 
against the harasser appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including 
legal actions where appropriate. 

23



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, 
resulting from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation 
situation shall be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse 
conduct taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has 
reported harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation 
process described herein, is prohibited. "Adverse conduct" includes but is not 
limited to: taking sides because an individual has reported harassment, 
spreading rumors about a complaint, shunning and avoiding an individual who 
reports harassment, or real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent an 
individual from reporting harassment. The following individuals are protected 
from retaliation:This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in 
reporting harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation 
process, from retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality 
of complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initial 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who 
may have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

B-180-70 Responsibilities.  

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect 
and consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy. 

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters. 

24



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by 
responding fully and truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed 
during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while 
the District’s investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate 
supervisor or manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and 
supervisor is responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy. 

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation from occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work 
environment and taking immediate and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., 
removing inappropriate pictures or correcting inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious 
manner.  

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints. 

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive 
conduct about which they complained has stopped and that there have been no 
reprisals or retaliation or threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their 
option to contact the EEOC or DFEHCRD and file a complaint about such 
activity. 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy. 

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s). 

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a 
recommendation concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in 
accordance with these policies. 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions. 

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the 
General Manager, regardless of whether an employee complained about such 
conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training. 

25



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001 10354357.1 LA105-001 

B- 180-5080- RightOption to File Report withto Outside Administrative Agencies. An 
individual possesseshas the option right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation to the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH)Civil Rights Department 
(CRD). These administrative agencies provideoffer legal remedies and a complaint process 
as well as certainand legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation 
of the law occurred. The nearest EEOC and DFEHCRD offices are listed in the government 
section of the telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on 
employer District bulletin boards for EEOC and DFEHCRD office locations and telephone 
numbers. 

26



Resolution No. 2023-2301  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2023-2301 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING BOARD POLICY REVISION FOR B-180 (HARASSMENT, 
DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION POLICY AND COMPLAINT 

PROCEDURE) 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has determined that a comprehensive list 
of Policies and Procedures for the Board is in the best interest of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has compiled a comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures to 
serve as the rules and regulations of the Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board did adopt such comprehensive list of Policies and Procedures on 
July 9, 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such policies may need to be updated from time to time; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 16, 2023 the Board reviewed and suggested changes to 
Board Policy B-180 (Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
approves the following revised policy section: B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND 
RETALIATION PREVENTION POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE. The previously 
approved Board Policy B-180 is hereby revoked and declared null and void. 
  
 If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policies and Procedures is in 
conflict with rules, regulations, or legislation having authority over the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District, said rules, regulations or legislation shall prevail. 
 

The Policies and Procedures shall remain in effect until amended by at least a majority 
vote of the Board of Directors. 
      

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 2nd  day of March 2023, by 
the following vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof Members:  
NOES, Members:   
ABSENT, Members:  
ABSTAIN, Members:       
        ________________________________ 
        Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
       

27



Resolution No. 2023-2301  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED:             
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President  

28



 

 
 

 

3/2/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

29



 

 

Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: March 2, 2023 

Re: Board Policy Review of O-40 (Customer Support) and M-10 (Public Involvement 
and Outreach) 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Attached for information and Board review are Draft Board Policies O-40 (Customer Support) and 
M-10 (Public Involvement and Outreach). 
 
There are no suggested changes by staff and legal counsel.  Staff will receive comments on the 
subject policies at the meeting and through March 15th. 
 
Comments received will be incorporated or addressed prior to bringing back these policies to the 
Board for approval at the next Board meeting. 
 
The Board has requested to review and update Board Policy.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number_____3.2_____ 

GM Review   ________CP______ 

 

30



DRAFT

31



32



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\03022023\Amendment of Employment Agreement Liebmann\ASR Amendment of Employment Agreement 
Liebmann.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: March 2, 2023 

Re: Amendment of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann 

Item Type:   Consent   Action     X   Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No X (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to authorize the General Manager to execute the Amendment of Employment Agreement 
between the District and Plant Manager, Robert Liebmann. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Management employees of the District are entitled to the use of a District vehicle, or they can 
choose to receive a vehicle allowance.  Plant Manager Liebmann would like to release his entitled 
use of the District’s 2018 Toyota Camry Hybrid so that it can be used as a pool vehicle to replace 
the aging 2014 Ford CMAX, which is scheduled to be replaced this fiscal year.  He would then be 
eligible to receive the vehicle allowance, which is his preference. 
 
Currently, the General Manager, Plant Manager, and Collections System Manager are entitled to 
a District vehicle. The District pays for all expenses associated with these vehicles.  
 
The District Engineer and Administrative Services Manager are compensated $410.21 per month 
as a vehicle allowance. They drive their own personal vehicle for District activities, when 
commuting to and from work, and are responsible for all vehicle costs. 
 
Employment Agreements, and therefore related amendments or modifications, are required to be 
approved by the Board. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On December 16, 2021, the Board ratified Employment Agreements with management, 
including the agreement with Plant Manager Liebmann. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$45,000 for purchase of a new fleet vehicle will not be required. The allocated funding can be 
used for other capital projects or can be returned to the Vehicle Reserve Fund. 

Item Number_______4_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

33

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

Amendment of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) Page 1 

AMENDMENT OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

And 

 

Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) 

 

This AMENDMENT OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of _____, 2023, by and between the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 

a special district, (“District or Employer”) and Robert Liebmann, (“Employee”) both of whom 

understand as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, an Employment Agreement exists between the District and Employer, entered 

into the 16th of December 2021; and 

WHEREAS, management employees are contractually entitled to use either a District 

vehicle where the Employer pays for all expenses associated with the vehicle or the Employee  can 

choose to receive a monthly vehicle allowance, currently $410.21 per month, for use of their own 

personal vehicle; and 

WHEREAS, the Employee currently receives the benefit of using a District vehicle and 

would like to begin using his own personal vehicle, freeing up the District vehicle for use as pool 

vehicle; and 

WHEREAS, it is mutually beneficial to the District and Employee to amend Management 

Benefits Section 5 (B) to provide a monthly vehicle allowance to the Employee in lieu of the use 

of a District vehicle; and 

WHEREAS, both Employer and Employee have read this Amendment of Employment 

Agreement and understand its contents fully. 

34



Amendment of Employment Agreement – Robert Liebmann (Plant Manager) Page 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the provisions and promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 

Replace in Entirety Section 5 (B) of the Employment Agreement With 

Section 5 (B) Employee  shall  be  compensated  $410.21  monthly  for  a vehicle  allowance.  

The amount will increase each year based on Board approved COLA increases. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has caused this 

Agreement to be signed and executed on its behalf by the General Manager, and duly attested by 

its District Secretary, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

_______________________________ Date: ______________ 

General Manager 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

______________________________ Date: _______________ 

Robert Liebmann 

______________________________ 

Teresa Lerch  

Board Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 

David J. Byers, Attorney for 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

35

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/extension-of-term-of-employment-agreement/_2


 

 
 

 

3/2/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 
Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee,  Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

36



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: MARCH 2, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

37



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\03022023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

3/2/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46


	Agenda 03022023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Baord Minutes 02162023
	2B Draft Warrant List 03022023
	2C  Resolution 2022-2301 for B-180
	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 Board Policies Review O-40 and M-10
	4 Amendment of Employment Agreement Liebmann
	5 Board Member Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



